QUESTIONS RECEIVED AND ANSWERS

RFQ 32923
December 15, 2003
Overall:

(1) Has a date been chosen?  Based on timeline requirements in the SOW of 6 1/2 months we would need to have this event in July, yet the SOW mentions May to July? Under Pre-Conference Registration & Promotion, it is noted that there is to be a six-month" save the date promo sent out.  If time does not permit, will those dates be changed? Many of the tasks listed have a due date six months before the event, however, by the time is grant awarded, it is possible there will be fewer than six months before the event.  Please help us understand how we can most appropriately respond/act under these circumstances. Will the organizing grantee have any say over the specific dates of the event, or is this only up to the hotel grantee?  It is my understanding that the organization will be responsible for setting the dates/hotel/location, etc.  Is that correct?  

Answer: The Conference Facilitator/Co-Sponsor will not be responsible for either setting the dates of the conference or selecting a hotel.  Dates, in fact, have already been determined and a hotel selected for the event.  The Economic Development Administration (EDA) 2004 National Conference will begin the evening of June 8, 2004 and end on the evening of June10, 2004.  The hotel facility will be the Omni Shoreham Hotel; 2500 Calvert Street, NW; Washington, DC 20008.  

Due to unavoidable delays, the solicitation was not posted in time to allow 6 ½  month lead times for certain tasks as stipulated in Section 5 of the solicitation Statement of Work.  All references to 6 ½ months will be modified to 5 ¼  months and all references to 6 months will be modified to 5 months.

(2) Will the grantee be expected to cover travel and/or hotel expenses for EDA staff or other guests? 
Answer: Travel and lodging expenses for speakers other than EDA and other Federal staff are the responsibility of the Conference Facilitator and should be reflected in the submitted proposal.  

(3) There is no mention of speaker honoraria in the RFQ.  Can/should we offer honoraria to speakers?  If so, is there any guidance on an appropriate amount?   This is particularly relevant for potential keynote speakers like Michael Porter and Alan Greenspan, as well as for the conference moderator from the financial press. 
Answer: EDA has historically not offered honoraria for speakers and does not anticipate doing so this year.  We have been successful in attracting top level speakers and participants without having to do so.

(4) Did you pay for mailing lists last year?
Answer: EDA did not pay for mailing lists and will not do so this coming year.

(5) How many are on the list that include; EDA investment recipients, attendees of past conferences, National Coalition of EDA members as available and include economic development professionals and practitioners, federal, state and local government representatives, as well as representatives of educational institutions?
Answer: The contractor Conference Facilitator/Co-Sponsor is responsible for compiling the list.  Using the reasonable formula of a 5 percent return on email and/or letter promotional material, it is suggested that approximately 20,000 people be contacted.

(6) When will decision be made?  
Answer: We assume you mean the decision on which contractor will get the contract.  If so, a decision will be reached after all proposals are received, the using activity performs a technical evaluation and the Contracting Officer evaluates cost.  A decision is anticipated by the end of December 2003.

(7) Although last year’s event was successful, what could have been done better and what was really great?
Answer: EDA does not wish to influence proposals but instead encourages responders to the solicitation to develop proposals based on experience, technical expertise, and creativity.

(8) Will the awardee be provided a listing of those who attended previously as well as the program outline, content?
Answer: Yes, EDA will provide a list of last year’s attendees and a copy of the program.

(9) How many VIPs do you anticipate attending this conference and will their fees/hotel, etc. by complimentary?
Answer: Section 4.12 of the Statement of Work states that the Conference Facilitator/Co-Sponsor will be responsible for deriving, with EDA approval, a registration fee sufficient to cover costs associated with the hotel “…and also the registration of 50 EDA staff who are not participating as speakers or other official participants and also the incremental attendance cost of approximately 40 Congressional staff and other Administration and Federal Government officials.”  This statement is being modified to change the phrase “approximately 40” to delete the word “approximately” and also to include an “others” category to those listed.

   (10) Where can I find a copy of the Federal Travel Regulation? 
Answer: http://www.thecre.com/fedlaw/legal28/ftrhp.htm
Coordination and Content:
(1) For Proposal, does the EDA want some speaker suggestions?
Answer: Suggestions for specific speakers are not required in the proposal.

(2) Would the EDA be interested in the Futuristic approach to Economic Development?
Answer: EDA’s objectives for the 2004 national conference are stated in Section 2.0 of the Statement of Work.

(3) Can we consider Panels as well as individual speakers?
Answer: Section 3.0 of the Statement of Work describes the general format envisioned for the 2004 national conference.  It is anticipated that concurrent sessions would be comprised of a moderator and from three to five (possibly more) other panelists or type of participants.

(4) Did the EDA pay speaker fees and expenses last year?

Answer: EDA has historically not offered honoraria for speakers and does not anticipate doing so this year.  We have been successful in attracting top level speakers and participants without having to do so.  Travel and lodging expenses for speakers other than EDA and other Federal staff are the responsibility of the Conference Facilitator and should be reflected in the submitted proposal.  

(5) Was there an outside company hired last year?  Is that company bidding again?
Answer: A non-profit organization served as conference facilitator last year.  EDA does not know who is planning to respond to this solicitation.

(6) Will you repeat any speakers from last year?
Answer: No decisions regarding speakers have been made.

(7) Did you do an evaluation of speakers last year?  Do you have this data?
Answer: An evaluation of the conference was made last year and EDA has that evaluation.

(8) Does the EDA want a planner in their office? 
Answer: EDA has determined that onsite personnel are not necessary.

(9) Will the organization be providing any on-site support?
Answer: EDA has determined that onsite personnel are not necessary.
(10) Since the website is hosted by the organization, will registrations and fees be    


collected by them on their website?

Answer: Section 4.3 states that the Contractor will register the national conference 

website, http://www.edanationalconference.com, launch it by six months (being modified to five months) prior to the conference, and manage it with EDA approval to include the ability of people to register online via that site.
 

Budget:
(1) 
It is not clear to me if we are supposed to prepare an overall budget for the conference in the proposal or just the Management Fee not including any ODC's.  If we are to prepare an overall budget to derive registration fees from, we are missing information on the budgeting process that would allow for a fixed price.
Answer: EDA believes that sufficient information is contained in the Statement of Work to allow responders to offer proposals on a fixed price basis.  A determination of a registration fee is not required as part of proposals in response to this solicitation.

(2) What was budget last year?
Answer: The total budgeted amount this past year for the national conference was $432,000.  Final closeout has not yet been accomplished but actual expenses are estimated at somewhat less than that at approximately $382,000.
(3) Is there a budget this year?  Is there an estimated or target budget figure for the grant? 
Answer: EDA is issuing this solicitation on a fixed price basis.
(4) When you say a fixed cost contract, does that mean there is no flexibility to increase (or decrease) payments based on attendance figures or other (exogenous) factors like having bad weather?   

Answer: It is correct that there is no flexibility to increase or decrease payments. Variable costs associated with the conference, such as food, are generally linked to attendance and it is anticipated that a good estimate of attendance will be known at the time that many of these variable costs are being expended.  Also, one of the reasons for choosing the dates is to avoid most types of weather related problems.
(5) Can the fixed cost be based on a per-attendee cost or is it literally a single budget number that cannot be adjusted?  
Answer: It is a single budget number.


(6) If this is a fixed cost contract, why is the hourly rate and number of direct productive 

hours being measured on an on-going basis.

      Answer: As this is going to be a FFP hours and rates are not required.

(7) Does the labor quote in the proposal have to be an hourly rate as opposed to a   


percentage of time (our standard metric)?   
      Answer: As this is going to be a FFP hours and rates are not required.
 (8) What is the basis/description of the labor categories (page 3 of RFQ memo) that we 
need to identify?  Can you provide a link to the FAR mentioned, or to another source to obtain a description? 

Answer: As this is going to be a FFP hours and rates are not required.

(9) Is Sponsorship used to cover costs?
Answer: Sponsorship revenue is not used to cover costs associated with the Conference Facilitator/Co-Sponsor.  To the extent available, sponsorship revenue is applied to hotel and food related expenses.


(10) Did the $295 for registration cover all the costs?
Answer: Registration revenue is not used to cover costs associated with the Conference Facilitator/Co-Sponsor.  Registration revenue is applied to hotel and food related expenses.

(11) How many paid attendees were there in 2003?
Answer: Section 1.0 states that over 800 people attended the 2003 national conference.  All but approximately 50 were paid attendees.  See Section 4.12 of the Statement of Work.


(12) How many attendees were there in 2003?
Answer: Section 1.0 states that over 800 people attended the 2003 national conference.


(13) Can we see a copy of the RFP for the hotel venue to understand which items will be 

covered in that grant? 
Answer: The hotel RFP is available via a link provided in the Conference Facilitator/Co-Sponsor solicitation.

(14) Specifically, does the hotel grant cover all hotel room, conference room and food 

costs for the event? 
Answer: All of these arrangements are described in the hotel solicitation that is available via a link provided in the Conference Facilitator/Co-Sponsor solicitation.


(15) Will the awardee under this contract be expected to manage the hotel award as well?  

  If you contract with the hotel, will the Conference Facilitator be noted on the Hotel 

  contract as the key POC?
Answer: As stated in Section 4.5 of the solicitation Statement of Work, the contractor will be responsible for all liaison and arrangements with the hotel.  Since the hotel is under contract to EDA, EDA has identified a Contracting Officer’s Technical Representative and the means by which the necessary coordination will be accomplished with the COTR will be established after award.

(16) Should costs for A/V, meals, am/pm breaks be estimated since these costs will 
depend on the hotel chosen?  Or will these be treated as an ODC and will not be needed in the cost estimated provide with the Proposal?
Answer: The hotel venue has been selected and will be the Omni Shoreham Hotel; 2500 Calvert Street, NW; Washington, DC 20008.  


(17) Will the contractor be giving a fixed price on all ODCs without reviewing the 

program first?  Is the cost proposal fixed before the award.
Answer: The hotel venue has been selected and will be the Omni Shoreham Hotel; 2500 Calvert Street, NW; Washington, DC 20008.  The contractor will be largely responsible for development of the conference program (see Sections 4.1, 4.4, and other relevant parts of the solicitation).  The cost proposal will be fixed before the award.

Publicity, Media Coverage:

(1) Did the EDA hire a PR or Publicist for this event last year?  Can we see clippings 

from the event?

Answer: EDA did not hire a public relations firm or publicist for the event.  EDA will not provide clippings to prospective responders before award but will make press clippings available after award.

(2) Do you want a photographer hired for this event?
Answer: No, the Department of Commerce and EDA will provide photographers as needed.


(3) What kind of assistance is required?  Press Releases?  Media Room for event?
Answer: EDA believes that sufficient information is contained in the Statement of Work, particularly Section 4.12 of the Statement of Work.  EDA expects the vendor to promote the conference to appropriate trade and national press in a sufficient and complete manner.  Therefore media advisories and press releases will be distributed by the contractor in consultation with EDA.  A media room would be appropriate but is not necessary.

(4) Do you have an in-house PR or Marketing staff person ?

 

Answer: While the EDA communications office will promote and market the conference utilizing its abilities and resources, the contractor will have primary responsibility for adequately promoting the national conference to the appropriate audience.
Hotel Liaison:

(1) Is the EDA using the same hotel as last year?  Which hotel was used last year?
Answer:  The hotel venue will be the Omni Shoreham Hotel; 2500 Calvert Street, NW; Washington, DC 20008.  It is the same hotel as last year.

(2) What was the pick-up for the rooms last year?
Answer: All of these arrangements are described in the hotel solicitation that is available via a link provided in the Conference Facilitator/Co-Sponsor solicitation.


(3) Did you end up paying for any meeting space last year?
Answer: All of these arrangements are described in the hotel solicitation that is available via a link provided in the Conference Facilitator/Co-Sponsor solicitation.


(4) Do you need help in choosing the hotel?


Answer: No, the hotel venue will be the Omni Shoreham Hotel; 2500 Calvert Street, 



NW; Washington, DC 20008.

(5) Will the awardee under this contract be expected to manage the hotel award as well?

Answer: As stated in Section 4.5 of the solicitation Statement of Work, the contractor 


will be responsible for all liaison and arrangements with the hotel.

(6) When is the grant for the hotel venue expected to be decided? 
Answer: The hotel venue was decided after this solicitation was already posted.  It will be the Omni Shoreham Hotel; 2500 Calvert Street, NW; Washington, DC 20008.

Corporate Sponsorship:

 
(1) Will the EDA provide the contractor with a list of EDA contractors or grantees?
Answer: EDA will not provide mailing list information for purposes of corporate sponsorship solicitation.  Sponsorship donations cannot be accepted from entities with which EDA/Department of Commerce has an ongoing relationship.


(2) Did you have Sponsors last year?  Who were they?
Answer: We had two sponsors last year that included Microsoft Corporation and Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railway.


(3) Do you have sample materials of the sponsor materials?  
Answer: Yes.


(4) Is the corporate sponsorship a required element of the conference administration?  If 


so, why? 
Answer: The solicitation and management of corporate sponsorships is a required element of the work to be performed.  EDA encourages corporate sponsorship participation to not only augment the event but also to provide an opportunity for private companies to demonstrate their willingness to participate in economic development. 


(5) What were corporate sponsors offered in previous years to solicit their financial 

participation? 
Answer: Last year was the first year that corporate sponsorships were solicited.  Based on the amount donated, corporate sponsors were offered a certain number of complimentary registrations, recognition during the conference (i.e., the conference website, conference program, and other appropriate venues).

(6) Is $50,000 a minimum goal for sponsorship can that be adjusted downward? 

Answer: No specific requirement for a corporate sponsorship amount has been   established.  The solicitation Statement of Work states only that EDA envisions from $50,000 to $60,000 in corporate participation.


(7) Would the contributions have to come from the private sector or could they come 

from foundations and/or other public sector sources? 

Answer: Donations could be accepted from other sources as long as no ongoing 
relationship exists with EDA/Department of Commerce or conflict of interest or appearance of a conflict exits with key EDA/Department of Commerce staff.
Exhibitors


(1) Did you have any last year?  If yes how many?  did not see on website.
Answer: There was no “exhibit hall” last year as such.  There were a couple of table top exhibits in the lobby areas as described in Section 4.7.


(2) Do you have sample materials from last year?

Answer: Assuming solicitation material, no.


(3) How many were on list that were solicited?

 


Answer: EDA did not solicit table top exhibits and no list exists.

Promotional Materials:

(1) Based on the attendance for 2003, how many materials were printed:

· Number of Potential Exhibitors

Answer: None, see discussion of exhibitors above.

(2) Solicitation of nominations for Excellence Award: 
· How was solicitation for nominations for awards made?  Letter?  Email?  

Answer: Requests for nominations were announced via the EDA website, letters to Congress, and other appropriate venues which promoted the national awards to the widest and most appropriate local and national trade press organs.  The contractor’s promotion of the Excellence in Economic Development Awards will be executed in close consultation with, and guidance from, appropriate EDA staff and should be designed and executed for maximum exposure.
· Direct Mail (how many printed pieces) All?

Answer: The contractor will be expected to adequately promote these national awards through a variety of printed materials and electronic venues which they deem necessary and appropriate.  As with the basic promotional strategy, the contractor will be expected to work closely with EDA staff.
· How many solicitations for nominations were sent in 2003?
Answer: An adequate number of announcements and solicitations were made nationally to insure that the greatest number of individuals and organizations were notified of the national awards.  EDA expects that the contractor will solicit nominations from the widest universe reasonably possible.
(3) Corporate Sponsorship package

· How many were solicited in 2003

Answer: A large number of appropriate organizations and corporations were contacted.
How many participated

Answer: Two corporations participated.


(4) Registration and promotional materials

· Save the Date – Is this a letter, postcard, an email?

Answer: All three or a combination of all three would be appropriate and strongly encouraged.  Specific promotional tactics will be left to the contractor but the expectation is that the contractor would achieve maximum exposure.
· How many recipients are on the list.

Answer: To insure a sizable turnout (1,000 - 2,000) EDA would expect a widespread promotion.  Using the reasonable formula of a 5 percent return on email and/or letter promotional material, it is suggested that approximately 20,000 people be contacted.

· Conference Registration Brochure – How many

Answer: To insure a sizable turnout (1,000 - 2,000) EDA would expect a widespread promotion.  Using the reasonable formula of a 5 percent return on email and/or letter promotional material, it is suggested that approximately 20,000 people be contacted.

· On-site Program


How many pages?


 Do you have a sample from last year?

Answer: Last year’s program was 38 pages plus a front and back cover but no preconceived notion exists regarding the length of the program.  EDA expects the length to be sufficient to adequately cover the information required.  Yes, EDA has a sample from last year.

· Speaker Directory


How many pages


Do you have a sample from last year?

Answer: Again, EDA expects the length to be sufficient to adequately cover the information required.  The speaker directory last year was part of the conference program and accounted for 17 pages of the 38 page program. 

Use this web address to view the hotel solicitation.

http://www.eps.gov/spg/DOC/NOAA/AGAMD/DG1325-04-RP-0002/listing.html
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